ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE LABOR AND COWWERCE STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 27, 2002
3:25 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Lisa Miurkowski, Chair
Representative Andrew Hal cro, Vice Chair
Representati ve Kevin Meyer

Representati ve Pete Kott

Represent ati ve Nor man Rokeberg
Representative Harry Crawford
Representati ve Joe Hayes

VEVMBERS ABSENT
Al l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 393

"An Act relating to unfair and deceptive trade practices and to
the sale of business opportunities; anending Rules 4 and 73,
Al aska Rules of G vil Procedure; and providing for an effective
date."

- MOVED HB 393 OQUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 377

"An Act relating to the establishment of an additional
sout hcentral panel to the Al aska Wrkers' Conpensation Board and
to appointnents to that panel; and providing for an effective
date."

- MOVED HB 377 OQUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE BI LL NO. 418
"An Act amending the Al aska Corporations Code as it relates to
delivery of annual reports, notice of shareholders' neetings,
proxy statenents, and other information to shareholders, and
provi ding for electronic proxy voting."

- HEARD AND HELD

PREVI QUS ACTI ON

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -1- February 27, 2002



BILL: HB 393
SHORT TI TLE: SALES OF BUSI NESS OPPORTUNI TI ES
SPONSOR(S): REPRESENTATI VE( S) STEVENS

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action
02/ 08/ 02 2182 (H) READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS
02/ 08/ 02 2182 (H L&C, JUD
02/ 25/ 02 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17
02/ 25/ 02 (H Heard & Held
M NUTE( L&C)
02/ 27/ 02 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17
BILL: HB 377

SHORT TI TLE: WORKERS' COVPENSATI ON BOARD PANELS
SPONSOR(S): REPRESENTATI VE( S) HARRI S

Jrn-Date Jrn- Page Action

02/ 01/ 02 2122 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

02/ 01/ 02 2122 (H L&C, FIN

02/ 27/ 02 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

BILL: HB 418

SHORT TI TLE: ELECTRONI C PROXY VOTI NG & NOTI FI CATI ON
SPONSCR(S) : LABOR & COVMERCE BY REQUEST

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action

02/ 13/ 02 2242 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

02/ 13/ 02 2242 (H) L&C

02/ 27/ 02 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE GARY STEVENS

Al aska State Legislature

Capi tol Building, Room 428

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified as the sponsor of HB 393 and
answer ed questi ons.

JULI A COSTER, Assistant Attorney Ceneral
Fair Business Practices Section

Civil Division (Anchorage)

Departnent of Law

1031 West 4th Avenue, Suite 200

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 2- February 27, 2002



Anchor age, Al aska 99501- 1994
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions regardi ng HB 393.

JOHN MANLY, Staff

to Representative John Harris

Al aska State Legislature

Capi tol Building, Room 513

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Present ed HB 377 on behal f of
Representative Harris, sponsor, and answered questi ons.

PAUL GRCSSI, Director

Di vision of Wirkers' Conpensation

Depart ment of Labor & Workforce Devel opnent

PO Box 25512

Juneau, Al aska 99802-5512

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions relating to HB 377.

AMY ERI CKSQN, St aff

to Representative Lisa Mirkowski

Al aska State Legislature

Capi tol Buil ding, Room 408

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 418 on behalf of the House
Labor and Comerce Standing Committee.

BUDD SI MPSON, Attorney

Si mpson Tillinghast Sorensen & Longenbaugh

One Seal aska Pl aza, Suite 300

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 418 on behalf of Seal aska
Cor por at i on.

TERRY ELDER, Director

Di vi sion of Banking, Securities & Corporations

Department of Comrunity and Econonmi c Devel opnent

PO Box 110807

Juneau, Al aska 99811-0807

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified and answered questions on HB 418.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 02-25, SIDE A
Number 001

CHAIR LISA MJRKOMSKI called the House Labor and Commerce
St andi ng Comm ttee nmeeti ng to or der at 3:25 p. m

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 3- February 27, 2002



Representati ves Mirkowski, Kott, Rokeberg, Crawford, and Hayes
were present at the call to order. Representatives Halcro and
Meyer arrived as the nmeeting was in progress.

HB 393- SALES OF BUSI NESS OPPORTUNI TI ES

Number 026

CHAI R MURKOABKI announced that the first order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 393, "An Act relating to unfair and deceptive
trade practices and to the sale of business opportunities;
anending Rules 4 and 73, Alaska Rules of Cvil Procedure; and
providing for an effective date."

CHAI R MURKOWBKI noted that public testinony was cl osed after the
| ast hearing. She had indicated then that she had sonme concerns
with regard to the definition of business opportunity; that
concern stemmed from the letter in nenbers' packets dated
February 21, 2002, from Bryan Harrison at Alticor, relating to
the Direct Selling Association's request for an anendnent that
woul d do two things: put a higher threshold in the exenption
category, and include that higher threshold wthin the
definition of business opportunity. She expressed concern about
requiring a relatively substantial bond and the registration and
regulation on snmaller, legitimte enterprises such as Amay.

CHAI R MJURKOWBKI indicated she'd been informed by the Departnent
of Law that these Direct Selling Association entities would be
covered under the exenption, but said it wasn't clear what
raising the threshold would do. She asked Representative
Stevens to update the commttee on this issue.

Number 061

REPRESENTATI VE GARY STEVENS, Al aska State Legislature, sponsor
of HB 393, responded, "You're absolutely right." He referred to
exenption (5) on page 12, |lines 28-30, which read:

(5) sales denobnstration equipnent, materials, or
sanples for wuse in sales denonstrations and not for
resale, or product inventory sold to the buyer at a
bona fi de whol esal e price;

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS offered that this exenption covers all
the legitimate organizations that Representative Mrkowski was
concerned about, such as Ammay, Avon, or Mary Kay. He expl ai ned
that [HB 393] would allow legitimte businesses to continue

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -4- February 27, 2002



operating, and also tries to protect those people who m ght get
caught up in sonme kind of consuner fraud. In regard to the
dol I ar amount, he expressed a preference for keeping it where it
is and not raising it too high. The goal is to protect people
from being fraudulently treated and still allow legitimte
busi nesses to conti nue operation.

Number 088

CHAIR MJRKOWSKI recalled that at the last hearing, she'd
indicated she would try to contact sone of these entities to
find out if someone has to pay an upfront cost to get the
product - not to get the product itself necessarily, but to
become an Ammay distributor, for exanple. She reported her
understanding that those upfront costs are relatively mninal
She voiced that this goes back to exenption (5). Because they
sell this product inventory, they will be covered under that.

CHAI R MJURKOWBKI referred to the threshold in exenption (1) [page
12] and suggested that entities or individuals offering this
per haps- questi onabl e busi ness opportunity - so long as they keep
it under $200 - could continue to "slip through the cracks and
conduct their scans.” She said there is just no way to get to
them She recalled testinony that this is "kind of a de mnims
| evel" and suggested it is above the $200 threshold that
oversi ght shoul d be ensured.

Nunmber 114

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS agreed $200 is a fairly snmall anmount, and
said if that anmount were |lowered, it would be "enornously hard
to police.” The real problem for those people around the
country who have |ost thousands of dollars is trying to protect
agai nst such fraud.

CHAI R MJURKOABKI noted that Representative Stevens had cleared up
the problem she'd had with the definition and the threshold.

Number 132

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG commented that he is wunconfortable
| eaving the $200 threshold in there. He said he isn't concerned
with dropping below that threshold, but would rather see it
rai sed. He referred to a letter from Alticor that recomends a
$500 threshold. He asked Representative Stevens why a threshold
of $200 is better than $500.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 5- February 27, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS replied that it is a policy call. He
asked, "How far do we want to go in protecting the public?" He

offered that he doesn't know the answer. He said, "It just
seens that we can protect people at a certain |evel. It's a
conprom se, | think, to cone to $200, but | think that was the
figure we felt was correct.”" He offered that the question m ght

be better answered by G ndy Drinkwater or Julia [Coster] who
were online and had done sone study on this issue.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG referred to sonme software that was $459
to basically start a business. He asked, "They had to have that
sof t war e?"

Number 163

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS responded in the affirmative, and said if
one |looks at these "horror stories" of various people getting
caught up in these [fraudulent] systens, they truly spent a |ot
nore than the "$200 level or even the $500 |evel." These
[ fraudul ent business opportunities] have been very costly to
peopl e.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG suggested this is the problem He
asked: | f soneone spent a lot nore than $200 or $500, then
what's wong with the $500 threshol d?

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS responded that this is "a question of how
far do you want to go in protecting the public.” He said he
can't imagine a legitimte business being concerned about this
[threshold]; rather, illegitimte businesses that are taking
advant age of people need to be stopped. He added, "I don't
think you'll find legitimte businesses that would say $200 is
the wong figure and $500 is the right figure."

CHAI R MURKOWBKI of fered that maybe "the hammer” with [HB 393] is
that Alaska has sonething in place to keep track of the
| egitimate operators through the registration process. She said

this mght nmake illegitinmate operators think tw ce about
advertising their scanms in Al aska because they are being watched
cl osel y. Currently, nobody is watching these operations other

than reading the classifieds and trying to follow through

Nunmber 193

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS agreed with Representative Mirkowski and
said, "And we can't find them" After the fact, it's pretty
hard for law enforcenent to l|ocate these [illegitimte]

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 6- February 27, 2002



conpani es because they don't have a pernmanent address or any
officers that one can find. He offered that he thinks the
registration process will do the najority of the job to find out
who these operators are and how to contact them He added,
“I't'1l allow us to follow through.” He explained that this is
an attenpt to prevent [any dispute] before it goes to the final
step of trying to enforce the law, a much nore expensive step.

Nunber 207

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if sellers of franchises are
exenpt .

REPRESENTATI VE  STEVENS responded in the affirmative and
expl ai ned that they are covered under exenption (2) [page 12].

CHAI R MURKOWSKI rmentioned that she had in her notes that the
Federal Trade Comm ssion (FTC) franchise rule has a $500 limt.
She asked Ms. Coster to address this issue.

Nunber 216

JULIA COSTER, Assi st ant Attorney General, Fair Busi ness
Practices Section, Cvil Dvision (Anchorage), Departnent of
Law, testified via teleconference. She explained that a
franchise rule admnistered by the FTC is simlar to [HB 393],
but doesn't require registration. It requires the types of

di scl osures required under [HB 393], and the limt is $500.

CHAI R MURKOWBKI asked why [HB 393] has a $200 threshold when the
federal threshold is $500.

M5. COSTER explained that many states that have registration
laws simlar to what [HB 393] is proposing have found that a
| arge nunber of scanms fall under the $500 level to avoid being
affected by the $500 threshol d. Havi ng conmuni cated with these
states, M. Coster said they all wurged [Alaska] to keep [the
threshold] as |low as possible, as a preventative neasure for the
scans under $500. She conveyed the hope of picking those scans
up by having the | ower |evel.

Nunmber 241
CHAIR MJURKOWBKI asked if she is wunderstanding exenption (2)

correctly, that if [a business opportunity is] a franchise, then
it wll be governed under the FTC limt. So even if there is an

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -7- February 27, 2002



Al askan exenption that says the threshold is $200, the threshold
is $500 for a franchise.

M5. COSTER said that is correct. She offered that it may be a
busi ness opportunity and not a franchise, so it wouldn't

necessarily fall wunder the FTC s rule. She expl ained, "The
franchise rule has a slightly different definition because it
does govern franchi ses as opposed to j ust busi ness

opportunities.”
Number 251

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER asked: Since [HB 393] is only neant to
deal with illegitimte or fraudulent businesses, why couldn't
the threshold be $100? He then recalled testinmony from the
state chanber that said it wanted the threshold at $500. He
said it sounds as though other states that have had [the
threshol d] at $500 have been [lowering] that |evel. He asked,
"Do you renenber what the testinony was from the state chanber
as to why they wanted it the higher |evel?"

CHAIR MURKOWSKI recalled that M. LaBolle had explained that

[the state chanber] didn't want to have a chilling effect on
smaller, legitimte businesses. Representative Mirkowski said
she didn't want to speak for M. LaBolle, but it seenms M.
LaBoll e "was confused in the sane way that | was, ... that the
Amnvays of the world would not be covered under ... exenption

(5), and so therefore you needed to have a higher threshold to
take care of them"™

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS reported that he has learned that at
| east two of the states that have a higher Iimt are attenpting
to return to a $200 figure. He said he's not sure the
Departnent of Law can give specifics on which two states those
are, but that there is a tendency to nove to that lower limt.

Nunber 277

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER asked why the threshold shouldn't be at $50
or $100 because, [HB 393] is trying to prevent conpanies that
[ Alaska doesn't want around] anyway.

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS responded that it was just a conprom se
figure because the [state] chanber and others voiced that they
wanted it higher. He stated, "I'm not certain there' d be any
objection to lowering, if you should so choose."

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 8- February 27, 2002



CHAI R MURKOWSKI offered that she was sonewhat concerned about
the threshold anobunt being as low as it is, and said she doesn't
necessarily agree with Representative Meyer that it makes sense
to go much | ower. She stated, "I think there is a de mnims
point where it just doesn't nmake sense anynore.”™ On the other
hand, to people getting scammed - for instance, the single nom
who has a young baby and needs to stay at hone and needs sone
income - a couple hundred dollars is a |lot of noney to | ose.

Number 299

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD said he believes the exenptions are
sufficient, and that he is "real confortable”™ with |eaving [the
t hreshol d] at $200.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG voiced concern relating to crimnal
penalties, asking, "What is ... the crine for stealing $200 from
sonebody?" He offered that the House Judiciary Standing
Comm ttee [which he chairs] can look into that issue.

Nunber 317

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES noved to report HB 393 out of commttee
W th i ndi vi dual reconmendat i ons and t he acconpanyi ng
indetermnate fiscal note. There being no objection, HB 393 was
noved fromthe House Labor and Conmerce Standing Conmmttee.

HB 377- WORKERS' COVPENSATI ON BOARD PANELS

Number 330

CHAI R MJURKOASKI announced that the next item on the agenda woul d
be HOUSE BILL NO 377, "An Act relating to the establishnent of
an additional sout hcentr al panel to the Al aska Wrkers'
Conpensation Board and to appointnents to that panel; and
providing for an effective date."

Number 337

JOHN MANLY, Staff to Representative John Harris, Al aska State
Legislature, presented HB 377 on behalf of Representative
Harris, sponsor. He told the commttee that [the Departnent of
Labor & Workforce Devel opnent (DLWD)] has workers' conpensation
boards throughout the state that try to resolve issues that cone
up in workers' conpensation clainms when they cannot be solved
adm ni stratively. There is a huge backlog in the Southcentral
area. House Bill 377 adds one board - a fourth board - to that

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 9- February 27, 2002



area that would allow the backlog to be worked on and clains
processed a lot quicker than they currently are. He nentioned
that HB 377 has a $5, 000 fiscal note.

Nunmber 346

CHAI R MURKOWNSKI asked if the backlog in the Southcentral area is
much greater than in other areas of the state, and if this is
the reason HB 377 focuses on that area.

MR. MANLY said, "That's ny inpression, but M. Gossi could
probably answer that nore specifically."”

Number 353

PAUL CGROSSI, Director, Division of Wrkers' Conpensati on

Department of Labor & W rkforce Devel opnent, testified before
the commttee. He said, "The answer is basically yes." The
Juneau board and the Fairbanks board are managing to keep within
a reasonable period of tinme getting the cases to the hearing.
The main portion of the backlog is comng from the Anchorage
area, and that's also where the increased caseload is occurring.
He speculated that it could be a result of population growh.
The Sout hcentral panel covers not only Anchorage, but also the
Kenai Peninsula, the WMatanuska-Susitna area, Cordova, Valdez,
and Kodi ak I sl and.

CHAIR MJRKOABKI referred to the W rkers' Conpensation Budget
Request Unit (BRU), and noted "an increnent in the FY 02

budget . " She reported that there was an additional hearing
officer hired |ast Septenber. She asked, "So, you' ve got
additional hearings that are being scheduled, and so now you
need the board to ... review those hearings; is that how it's

pr oceedi ng?"

Nunmber 373

MR, GROSSI expl ained that the panel of the Wrkers' Conpensation
Board consists of the follow ng nenbers: the conmm ssioner of
[the Departnent of Labor and Workforce Devel opnent] or his/her
designee - the hearing officer in nobst cases - and two |ay

menbers: a | abor nenber, who is usually a business nanager from
a union; and an industry nenber, who is an executive of a
corporation or a business owner. These people sit together and
decide cases that can't be resolved any other way, and nake a
final decision on workers' conpensation cases.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -10- February 27, 2002



MR GROSSI said the nunber of hearing officers has been
increasing, but the lay nenbers are busy people who are
executives of corporations or business nanagers of unions who
can volunteer [just] a certain anount of tine. He said, "W've
gotten to that point where we actually need nore hearing tineg,
and we need sone nore lay nenbers to be able to hear those
i ncreased hearings." This is a relatively inexpensive way to
handle it.

MR. GROSSI explained that the $5,000 fiscal note is a result of
the stipend the board nenbers are paid. Lay nmenbers, who are
volunteers, are paid a $50-a-day stipend for the time they're
there, usually two to four days a nonth. He stated, "The $5, 000

would come out of our ... workers' safety and conpensation
account, which 1is our fees-driven paynent system for the
agency." There wouldn't be any additional fees to the enployers

or the insurance conpani es.
Nunmber 401

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked how | ong the $50 stipend has been
in effect.

MR. GROSSI answered, "Since statehood." He added that at the
time it was a significant anpunt, but today "it's kind of ... an
enbarrassnent . " In response to a question from Representative

Rokeberg, he specified that there would be four Southcentral
panel s, one panel in Fairbanks, one panel in Juneau, and an at-
| ar ge panel

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if there are two [lay] nenbers on
each panel

MR GROSSI replied in the affirmative.
REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said that's 14 people. He asked what

the inpact on the fiscal note would be if the stipend were
rai sed to $100.

Nunber 420

MR. GROSSI, noting that the board neets two to four tines a
nonth, replied, "$14,000. | think that would be the approxi nate
nunber . "

Nunmber 436

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -11- February 27, 2002



CHAIR MJRKOASKI nentioned new regulations that require the
hearings to be scheduled in a nore expedited nmanner, within the
60-day tinme period. She asked what inpact this will have on the
respective workl oads for the various panels.

MR. CGROSSI responded that it will be a little problematic if
[the new panel] isn't approved. But if it does go through, "
think we'll be fine."

CHAIR MJURKOWSKI offered that [the Wrkers' Conpensation Board]
will be fine because there will be an additional panel. She
asked if this will require nore of the panel nenbers by having a
requi renent that hearings nmust be schedul ed.

Nunber 444

MR. CGROSSI explained that there isn't a problem in Juneau or
Fai rbanks, and offered that an additional panel in Anchorage
will increase productivity by 25 percent. He stated, "W're

focusing on the area of the problem™

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if raising the stipend would help
productivity.

MR. GROSSI expressed that nenbers sit on the board for vol unteer
reasons, but he thinks it would be a nice gesture [to raise the
stipend].

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said he'd calculated that if there are
14 people neeting four days a nonth, that is 56 days; he'd
rounded that figure dowmn to 50 days. He said with a $100
stipend, that's only $5, 000. He asked about the source of the
wor kers' conpensation account.

MR. CGROSSI said, "It's a statutory designated-programreceipts
account . C Basically, it's an account that's ... general
funds program receipts.” He explained that it's paid out of a
portion of premum tax; for self-insurers, it's off of a
percentage of indemity Dbenefits or workers' conpensati on
benefits.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG conmented that the $5,000 figure is
denoted for travel.

Nunmber 468

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -12- February 27, 2002



MR. GROSSI replied that that's the way [the D vision of Wrkers'
Conmpensation] accounts for the per diem because there isn't
another line itemto deal with it.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if the fiscal gap would be
affected if the stipend was raised.

MR. GROSSI replied, "It would not affect the fiscal gap.”

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if M. Gossi had any idea what
ot her boards around the state are being paid, either through a
per diemor a stipend.

Number 480

MR. GROSSI replied that sone don't get any paynents, but "sone
of them get hundreds [of dollars].”

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD asked, "I understand this would cone
from program recei pts, but would that take program receipts away
from sonme ot her progranf”

MR. GROSSI explained that the only two prograns that these funds
are available to are adm nistration of workers' conpensation and
wor ker s’ safety - OSHA [ Cccupati onal Safety and Health
Adm ni stration].

Number 489

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWCRD asked, "Wuld that take away from
enf orcenment of OSHA?"

MR. GROSSI offered that he thinks there are sufficient funds
avai |l abl e. Even if it's $15,000, it's not going to nmke a
significant difference.

CHAIR MJRKOWSKI asked whether the $50 stipend is all the
conpensation the board nenbers receive, or if travel s
i ncl uded.

MR. CGROSSI replied that the board nenbers are entitled to their
travel . He nmentioned the at-large panel and said that panel's
travel costs are paid for.

CHAIR MJRKOWBKI inquired as to whether the board nenbers are
rei nbursed for overnight expenses while traveling.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -13- February 27, 2002



MR, GROSSI replied in the affirmative.
REPRESENTATI VE MEYER asked if food costs are covered al so.

MR, CGROSS|I offered that he thinks the board nenbers are entitled
to the $40-a-day food all owance that the state has.

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER asked if he was correct that the board
menbers receive a $50 stipend, travel costs, overni ght expenses,
and $40 for food.

Number 506

MR. CGROSSI explained that if the board menber is from Anchorage
and is hearing a case in Anchorage, then he/she isn't entitled
to travel costs. He added, "They're entitled to travel [costs]
when they actually travel."

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER asked whether soneone traveling from
Wasilla to Anchorage woul d get a m | eage rei nbursenent.

MR. GROSSI responded in the affirmative.
REPRESENTATI VE MEYER asked about babysitting costs.
MR. GROSSI replied in the negative.

Nunber 510

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG cal cul ated the cost to be about $5,000 a
nmont h, which would be an annual cost of $60, 000. He asked,
"Wul d the $60, 000 nake an inpact on the account?"

MR GROSSI replied that it would be an increase, but that he
believes there would be sufficient funds in the account. He
said he couldn't answer with absolute certainty until he checked
t he account.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked about any "fiscal baggage"” [the
di vision] mght be dealing with right now.

MR. MANLY replied, "W could certainly consider that at the
[ House] Finance Conmttee."

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG offered to nmke an anendment, or said

[the House Finance Commttee] could take the issue up. He said
it mght be easier if he offered an anmendnent, and then [the

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -14- February 27, 2002



House Finance Commttee] could renove the anendnent if it didn't
| i ke the change.

Nunber 527

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER said although he doesn't disagree wth
Representati ve Rokeberg's point, he doesn't think this is the
appropriate tine or place to raise the stipend.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD stated that he doesn't disagree wth
Represent ati ve Rokeberg, either, but his main concern is to get
extra board right now.

CHAI R MURKOABKI nentioned testinmony that this is essentially a
vol unteer position, and if the stipend were raised, it wouldn't
be to conpensate the board nenbers for tine spent; rather, it
woul d be a slight recognition of what they've done.

Number 538

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER expressed that at sonme point, he'd like to
|l ook at all the boards and comm ssions, because it sounds as
t hough sonme have no stipend, some have a $50 stipend, and sone
have a stipend over $100.

MR, GROSSI said he renenbers seeing one [board or comm ssion]
that had a $200 [stipend]. He stated, "I don't know exactly how
t hose are determ ned.”

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER renmarked, "I guess I'ma little synpathetic
to the fish board too. Perhaps they should get sonething."”

Nunmber 544

CHAIR MJRKOWNSKI offered that the Departnent of Labor [and
Wor kforce Developnent] could sunmarize its boards, and the

Division of Cccupati onal Licensing could also, if [the
| egi slature] wanted that kind of a summary. She stated, "As
it's been pointed out, ... this is funded through a nechanism
where these folks pay in, and goes for the ... admnistration of

t he workers' conpensation program ™
Nunmber 548

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER noved to report HB 377 out of commttee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -15- February 27, 2002



not es. There being no objection, HB 377 was noved from the
House Labor and Conmmerce Standing Committee.

HB 418- ELECTRONI C PROXY VOTI NG & NOTI FI CATI ON

Number 555

CHAIR MURKOWBKI informed the commttee that the next order of
business would be HOUSE BILL NO 418, "An Act anending the
Al aska Corporations Code as it relates to delivery of annual
reports, notice of sharehol ders' neetings, proxy statenents, and
other information to shareholders, and providing for electronic
proxy voting."

The commttee took an brief at-ease from4:10 p.m to 4:11 p. m
Nunber 562

AMY ERICKSON, Staff to Representative Lisa Mirkowski, Al aska
State Legislature, introduced HB 418 on behalf of the House
Labor and Commrerce Standing Conmittee, which was sponsoring the
bill by request. She explained that HB 418 very generally gives
Al aska corporations a nore convenient, tinely, and efficient
met hod of voting, by giving them the explicit ability to offer
el ectronic proxy voting to their sharehol ders. Approxinmately 25
states already offer electronic proxy voting and the process is

si npl e and qui ck. She expl ained that a sharehol der receives a
PIN [personal identification nunber] electronically, which the
sharehol der then uses to vote. The bill 1includes provisions

that permt corporations to send one copy of an annual report
and proxy materials to multiple shareholders at the sane
address, and to stop sending annual reports and proxy statenents
to sharehol ders whose mailing addresses are invalid.

M5. ERI CKSON offered that this will result in cost savings and

added conveni ence for Al aska corporations. Reducti on of paper
printing, and postage costs will be substantial - especially for
| arger corporations. She explained that proxy voting will allow

for faster tabulation and higher accuracy of voting results.
She said that because households in Alaska have the highest
conputer ownership and Internet access of any state in the
nation, electronic voting wll likely increase sharehol der
partici pation.

Nunber 574

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -16- February 27, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE HAYES suggested that since electronic proxy
voting has worked so well for shareholders, maybe it should be
considered for elections in general in Al aska.

CHAI R MJURKOWBKI responded that the title of [HB 418] is tight
enough that the commttee wouldn't be including Representative
Hayes's suggestion in this particular |egislation. She thanked
Ms. Erickson for presenting HB 418 to the conmittee.

Nunber 585
BUDD  SI MPSON, At t or ney, Si npson Ti | I'i nghast Sorensen &

Longenbaugh, testified on behalf of Sealaska Corporation. He
said HB 418 is not particularly directed at Native corporations,

but rather is an anmendnent to Title 10, "the regular
corporations code,” and would apply to all Al askan business
cor porations. Addressing Representative Hayes's question

relating to the application of electronic voting to general
el ections, he recalled that in 2000 the Republican Party of

Al aska had conducted a "straw poll" relating to making
el ectronic voting available to people who wanted it. He said,
"It was tried once before ... and | guess it worked out well

with a lot of participation.”

TAPE 02-25, SIDE B
Number 595

MR.  SI MPSON enphasized that the language in HB 418 is not
sonet hi ng [ Seal aska Corporation] nade up itself. The | anguage
has been nodel ed after various other states' existing statutes.
California and Del aware, in particular, are often ahead of other
states in corporate |aw areas. He said, "Everything that we've
suggested here has been approved by the federal Securities and
Exchange Comm ssion [SEC]," so it already applies to nost of the
| arger, publicly traded busi ness corporations in the country.

Number 583

MR SIMPSON reported that 25 states have adopted simlar
| egislation relating to electronic voting and electronic
delivery of corporate naterials. He explained that the
"househol di ng" provision is the shorthand term for sending one
set of materials to the sane address where several sharehol ders

live. Seal aska Corporation has found that in nmany cases, four
or five shareholders are at one address - for exanple, two
parents with two or three children - and "in real life, probably
one of those people is reading the nmaterials anyway." He

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -17- February 27, 2002



explained that the parents are custodians for the mnor
sharehol ders, and under current |law [Sealaska] is sending a
five- or six-dollar set of brochures and proxy statenents to
everybody at the address, which is pointless.

Nunber 574

MR. SIMPSON said Seal aska Corporation has done sone scientific
surveying and found that over 60 percent of its sharehol ders
have either a conputer or access to the Internet. These results
show that there is a big possibility that a |ot of people would
actually wuse [electronic proxy voting]. Seal aska Corporation
also found that 29 percent to 30 percent of those polled
indicated an interest in both receiving corporate information
electronically and being able to vote through electronic nedia.
He said [Seal aska Corporation] thinks that not only wll [HB
418] save noney, but it will increase participation in voting.
M. Sinpson noted that contrary to what sone people think,
"corporations do like to get a big turnout for their elections
and get as nuch participation as possible.”

Number 557

MR, SIMPSON said he'd had a chance to briefly review a fiscal
note and coments provided by the Division of Banking,
Securities & Corporations (DBSC). He said he disagreed with
nearly everything in the comments provided by DBSC. He noted
that there are basically tw areas where [DBSC] anticipates

addi tional cost. The first is the supposed need to revise the
regulation pertaining to Native corporations. M. Sinpson
offered that he doesn't view [HB 418] as particularly a Native
corporation bill. He said that after reading the regul ations,

he didn't see any one place that needs to be revised if HB 418
i S passed.

MR. SIMPSON offered that second, the fiscal note anticipates a
| ot nore adjudicative proceedings and sharehol der conplaints.
M. Sinpson said he doesn't understand why this would be, and

suggested it is at least as Ilikely there would be fewer
conplaints filed and less problens [if HB 418 passes]. He al so
suggested the division would actually have an easier tine
dealing with these issues if it is dealing with things Ilike

el ectronic proxies, rather than having to manually sift through
thousands of witten paper proxies to check signatures.
Concluding that the DBSC is wong about the fiscal note, M.
Si mpson said he thinks the fiscal note should represent zero.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 18- February 27, 2002



Number 533

MR.  SIMPSON addressed another big concern of DBSC, that
el ectronic voting will benefit the corporations unfairly, to the
detrinment of independent sharehol ders who are trying to run for
the board or trying to pass a resolution. He di sagreed, saying
el ectronic voting wll allow independent candidates to take
advantage of this process at |least as nuch as the corporation
can. The ability to send materials to a large nunber of
sharehol ders electronically, wthout having to print sonething
or having to pay for postage, is a trenendous advantage to
whoever is doing it; corporations wll save tens of thousands of
dollars a year. M. Sinpson suggested that individua
sharehol ders are the ones that these kinds of costs really
"kill"™ in an election process. He concluded, "I think that this
wi |l open up the process even nore to independent candi dates and
i ndi vi dual sharehol ders. ™"

Number 510

CHAIR MJRKOABKI  remarked that nmenbers of her famly are
sharehol ders in several Al askan corporations, and get too much
proxy information in the mil from the corporations. She
i ndi cated the "househol di ng" provision is a wonderful advantage,
not only for the corporation, but also for the sharehol der.
Representative Mirkowski asked: If her sons decided to get
i ndependent and vote on their own, is there a process through
whi ch they could notify the corporation that they want their own
statenents to conme to themindividually?

MR SIMPSON said that particular issue is addressed. He
expl ai ned how way this process would work: before a corporation
could use the householding provision, it would have to notify
the shareholders in witing and give them the opportunity to
either consent to that [or not], or advise them of the

opportunity. The sharehol der could opt out easily at any tine
by, for exanple, calling an 800 nunmber or nmailing a postcard to
t he corporation. He said the corporation would be required to

make the changes within 30 days.

CHAI R MJRKOWBKI asked M. Sinpson how the SEC conmes into play
with this type of legislation, because Native corporations in
Alaska are Alaska Native Clains Settlenent Act ( ANCSA)
corporations, which puts a different tw st on things.

Number 480

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -19- February 27, 2002



MR.  SIMPSON responded that he doesn't want to I|eave the
i npression that the SEC has approved this exact bill [HB 418].
The SEC has adopted simlar provisions on a national |evel, and
Seal aska Corporation hasn't been in touch with the SEC on this

parti cul ar | egi sl ati on. He explained that the Native
corporations are exenpt from regulation by the SEC with the
intent that the State of Al aska corporate code wll control

Al aska Native corporations. The reason for that was so that the
corporations wouldn't be burdened by excessive regulation when
they were getting started up. Wiile the SEC has approved of
this exact type of provision, it doesn't apply to Al aska Native
cor porati ons. It would already apply to Al askan corporations
that are publicly traded, which would nmake them subject to SEC
regul ati ons; he added that he doesn't know if there even are any
of these corporations in Alaska.

Number 463

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked M. Sinpson if he could provide
the commttee copies of the appropriate docunents pertaining to
California and Del aware's statutes that "mrror" [HB 418].

MR SI MPSON said he would do that.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG addressed the issue of how many tines
"undeliverable mail" needs to be re-sent to sharehol ders. He
said currently [HB 418] requires that mil to be sent and
returned as undeliverable two tinmes before ceasing to nail any
| onger. He asked M. Sinpson if two attenpts is consistent with
what ot her states have enacted.

Nunber 447

MR,  SIMPSON responded that currently, the corporations keep
sending mail to an address where a shareholder used to live and

has |eft no forwardi ng address. He noted that nany tinmes, the
US Postal Service will forward mail; this wouldn't apply to
sonmething that is actually forwarded to the sharehol der. He

said the "two-tines requirenent” is fromother state's statutes,
and is about right in terns of how often the mailings go out.
He nentioned that when dividend <checks are returned as
undel i verable, that usually tells the corporation that nobody is
t here.

Nunmber 436

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 20- February 27, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if [ Seal aska Corporation] would be
in conpliance with state law if it continued sending out the
proxy statements and annual reports to an address where nobody
lives.

MR. SI MPSON sai d yes.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked M. Si npson  what Seal aska
Corporation does wth dividend checks that are returned as
undel i ver abl e.

Nunber 426

MR. SI MPSON stated that Seal aska Corporation is required to send
the check to the shareholder's last known address. He said
Seal aska Corporation doesn't keep sending the "same ones over
and over again, but when new stuff comes out, we send it." He
said it's possible there are corporations out there that are not
doing this.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked M. Si npson if Seal aska
Cor poration has around 17,000 sharehol ders.

MR. SI MPSON replied, "Alnost [17,000], yes."

REPRESENTATI VE RCOKEBERG said other than nmmjor "Fortune 500"
conpanies, 17,000 is a very |large nunber of sharehol ders.

MR. SI MPSON sai d Seal aska Corporation is the |largest in Al aska.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked M. Sinpson if he has any idea
what the [national] average is.

MR SI MPSON sai d no.
Number 407

CHAI R MURKOWBKI said she is "shocked and appalled” at the fiscal
note, which she'd been led to believe would represent zero, and
then "at 12:30 p.m, we find out that not only is it not a zero
fiscal note, but it's one of those 'oh, ny gosh' fiscal notes.”
She said she has been inpressed by DBSC s attenpt to get the
rest of Alaska online to do things like file a business |icense.
She asked why the fiscal note represents that it is "inpossible"
for the corporations to cone online |like other businesses have.

Nunmber 397

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -21- February 27, 2002



TERRY ELDER, Director, Dyvision of Banking, Securities &
Cor porations, Department of Community and Econom c Devel opnent,
offered to neet with M. Sinpson at sonme point and work through
sone details pertaining to HB 418. He said M. Sinpson had
indicated to DBSC what M. Sinpson's interest was, but that
wasn't forwarded to him He added that if there weren't ANCSA

corporations in Alaska, then he "wouldn't be here.” He said
Alaska is the only state in the country that has responsibility
for "nmonitoring the director of proxy elections.” He'd |earned

t hrough conversations with the corporate finance section of the
SEC that its experience dealing wth proxy issues is totally
different from [Alaska's] experience. He said, "That's, in
fact, the reason why it is exenpt fromthe SEC rul es.”

Number 368

MR. ELDER said the idea at the time was that the proxy
regul ations should be closer to honme and be done in Al aska,
rather than having people in Al aska always having to deal wth
peopl e in Washington, D.C He said, "Wen we | ook at sonething
that otherwi se would be fine and woul d appear to be innocuous in
corporation rules, we have to view themw th the thought of what
i npact does this have on the one program which is unique in
Al aska - ANCSA. " He said [HB 418] doesn't deal specifically
with the corporation code but rather with proxy materials.

Nunmber 354

MR. ELDER addressed the issue of the fiscal note and said when
"the progranf was first started, the responsibility was first
given to Al aska. He continued by saying that |ater on when the
securities Act rules were changed to include enforcenent, the
division at that tinme submtted a fiscal note that the
| egi sl ature "zeroed out." He said, "The fact is that it has had
- and does have - a fiscal inpact.”

Number 339

MR. ELDER said the DBSC has a nunber of concerns. He offered
that naybe sone |anguage could be worked out that would allay
the division' s concerns. He noted that in a phone conversation
that day, he'd told M. Sinpson that the division would want to
expand [the |anguage] to make sure that other corporations and
sharehol ders had sone input into this issue, which is, in fact,
their election.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -22- February 27, 2002



MR. ELDER explained that "what makes [ANCSA corporations] so

different from anything the SEC does is the fact that ... the
shares aren't transferable.” If a typical shareholder in a
"tradabl e" conpany were upset about sonething, it would be
fairly unusual for that person to wage a proxy war; nore |ikely,
the person would sell his/her shares. However, because ANCSA
corporation shares aren't t radabl e or transf erabl e, a
shareholder with a problem mght attenpt to have changes nade
through proxy contests. Therefore, a lot of independent

candi dates file and seek el ection, and sone are successful.
Number 313

MR. ELDER informed the commttee that [DBSC] gets a lot nore
conpl aints expressed bot h from a corporation agai nst
[individual] candidates and from those candidates against a
cor poration. The division also receives a lot of conplaints
about "mailing lists and other things which are covered in Title
10." He reported that it has always been the DBSC s position to
not enforce those conplaints. He said there is a private right
of action in Title 10 whereby shareholders hire their own
attorneys and sue a corporation if they feel sonehow that the
corporation has taken advantage of them or has violated Title
10. M. Elder remarked that the division's role is to bring to
the conmttee's attention another view that needs to be heard.

Number 280

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES asked why the figure for travel costs is
$26, 000.

MR. ELDER said, "That is the total <cost of both ... one
| nvestigator |11, with $10,000 of travel, ... and with public
hearings to neet with shareholders around the state.” He said

the division's regulations haven't changed nuch in the last 10
or 12 years, whereas the dynamics of corporations and their

el ections have changed substantially. He said that when the
regul ati ons are opened up for review, [the division is] going to
have first solicit coments from everybody - nore than just
three newspapers in the state, because these corporations are
st at ew de. Therefore, the division's fiscal note includes a
hi gher |evel of running notices and actually obtaining input,
rather than relying on the mil. He explained that this is

expensive and that the division has never done it.

Number 256

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -23- February 27, 2002



CHAI R MURKOWABKI asked why the division would do it now.

MR. ELDER answered that it's tinme to update the regulations

When the regulations were drafted 25 or 26 years ago - | ooking
at the record - it appears that nost of the conversation was
bet ween corporate executives and corporations. He expl ai ned

that since the ANCSA corporations had only been in existence for
5 to 7 years at that point, that was probably reasonable; a
si zeabl e percentage of mnority shareholders weren't at that
table formng the regulations. He said these are their
el ections for their corporations, and it's a mstake to ignore
them M. Elder offered that it would be nice to nake everybody
feel he/she had input in adopting regulations, as opposed to
feeling forever excluded fromthat process.

Nunmber 215
MR. ELDER noted that the division has had a |lot of conplaints in

the past from individual shareholders about the sharehol der
lists that they'd obtained from the corporation in order to

conduct their own proxy contest. Exanpl es of conplaints are
that the corporation wasn't responsive or tinely enough, or that
people don't think the corporation gave them the latest |ist,
because they got a lot of returned nmail. He said the
corporation has always responded by explaining that it gets a
| ot of returned mail, also, and that it's hard to keep up a list

that doesn't have a high percentage of returned mail.
Nunmber 189

CHAI R MURKOWBKI indicated she objected to the fiscal note. She
offered her opinion that [HB 418] is intended to update things
to allow for electronic voting. She told M. Elder that the
division is "socking what | think is a pretty legitimate bill
with a fiscal note to underwite the full-course proxy
regul ation review" She wanted to know if there is a way the
division could submt a fiscal note that applies only to the
cost of inplenmenting HB 418. She said, "Here's an effort to
really bring about greater participation into the process, and
if this fiscal note goes to [the House Finance Commttee], which
it would have to, even though it was not given a finance
referral, ... it's not going to go anywhere."

Number 153

MR. ELDER offered that as far as the regulations are concerned,
the division could submt a "scal ed-down" version of regul ations

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 24- February 27, 2002



that wouldn't include face-to-face neetings. For exanple, at
t he commttee's option, [the solicitation costs for the
regulation review] could be taken out and replaced with "the
bare bones.” Then, when it cones tine to adopt new regul ati ons,
the division would do it w thout face-to-face neetings, if that
is how it 1is funded. He added, "What appears ... to be a
narrowy focused change is not going to be narrowy focused,
because people are going to be able to nake coments on the
entire range of regulations.”

Number 130

CHAI R MURKOWSKI asked, "By doing this, are we opening up the
whol e sharehol der di ssident proxy fight ...?"

MR. ELDER warned that it is inpossible to ignore issues Iike
mailing |ists because these issues have been around for a couple
of decades.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked M. Elder if he is indicating that
the adm nistrative procedures are such that the division could
not refuse to take comments on other provisions that aren't
covered by the instructions in the statute.

MR. ELDER replied that [DBSC] would take instructions from the
Departnent of Law.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG suggested [the conmmittee] might want to
| ook at a legal opinion that would ask whether it could narrow
the focus of any regulatory revisions nade just to conform to
the statute. He stated that he would be "very concerned" if
this were not possible. He said he appreciated M. Elder's
concerns, but that the division is trying to solve a long-term
problem which is not what [HB 418] is trying to address.

Number 085

MR. ELDER said that is only part of the fiscal note. He
explained that the other part of the fiscal note is the
i nvesti gat or.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said what has him "baffled” is that [the
division] says that it doesn't enforce Title 10, and then has to
turn around and spend $100, 000 to draft regul ati ons on sonething
it doesn't enforce.

Number 079

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -25- February 27, 2002



MR. ELDER said, "[DBSC] enforces the proxy rules that are part
of the securities Act, and those rules go to the delivery of

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG i nterjected, "You said the private right
of action, which is in Title 10, ... so are you changing your
testi mony now?"

Number 069

MR. ELDER responded that [the division] has regulations that
address the delivery of proxy materials, and [HB 418] would
af fect those regul ations. He explained that anyone can file a
conplaint that goes to the receipt or the failure to send
information, but currently the division doesn't get these Kkinds
of conplaints. The kinds of conplaints [the division] gets nost
often relate to msstated or fraudulent nmaterial. He offered
DBSC s opinion that this will open up the opportunity for nore
ki nds of conplaints that will require an investigation.

CHAI R MJURKOWBKI asked why the division thinks this will generate
nore conpl ai nts.

Number 043

MR. ELDER offered that he doesn't think anyone has clained that
a corporation has failed to make delivery of the required
information, the way things are now. However, when several
issues like delivery of information, mailing lists, and
househol ding are discussed together, M. Elder said he gets
nervous because he see the opportunity for conplaints requiring
an investigation.

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO said whenever one is given nore

opportunities to participate in a process, t he nor e
opportunities there are to conplain about the fairness of the
process. He asked if this is simlar to what M. Elder is

descri bi ng.
Nunber 002
MR. ELDER agreed it would certainly be part of the problem He
said it is a good idea to broaden it, but it also changes the

met hods of sending it.

TAPE 02-26, SIDE A

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 26- February 27, 2002



Number 001

MR. ELDER said if there is an increase in conplaints, sonme of
which may or may not be well-founded, the division still wll
have to investigate them because it is the division's
responsibility.

Number 010

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked, "Even though it's a private right
of action?"

MR. ELDER replied, "A private right of action goes to Title 10
itself. And in ternms of the regulations that govern proxy
contests, that is [the division's] responsibility." He said if
sonmething is covered in the proxy rules, then certainly a
sharehol der can file a conplaint with the division, resulting in
an investigation.

CHAI R MJURKOWSKI said the conversation has hit on the two main
topics of discussion: revision of the regulations and an
i ncreased nunber of conpl aints.

Number 040

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO suggested that M. Elder mght want to sit
down with the supporters of HB 418 and tal k about sonme of the
"sticking points" he has with HB 418.

CHAIR MJRKOABKI said Representative Halcro's suggestion is a
sound recomendati on because she believes sone areas can be
i roned out. She encouraged M. Elder and M. Sinpson to neet
and work out some details before the committee continues this
heari ng on Monday, March 4, 2002.

Number 074

MR. ELDER noted that he had a phone conversation with M.
Si mpson and offered to work on any details. He also said he'd
be willing to devote a fair anmount of tinme between today and
Monday, March 4, to neet with M. Sinpson.

CHAI R MJURKOWBKI said she understands that M. Elder has sone
additional issues with HB 418 that have been docunmented, and
encouraged him to include those issues in his discussion wth
M. Sinpson.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -27- February 27, 2002



Number 101

CHAI R MJURKOWBKI announced that the House Labor and Conmerce
Standi ng Conmttee would hold over HB 418 until Mnday, Mrch 4,
2002.

ADJ OURNNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Labor and Commerce Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at
5:05 p.m

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 28- February 27, 2002



